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 2010 2009 

   

Number of participations 185 181 

of which exploration  48  45

   

EBN’s share of sales (billion m3)1 33 29 

   

In millions of euros

Sales (from continuing activities) 6,486 6,387 

Net profit from continuing activities 2,076 2,211 

Payments to the State 5,339 5,188

Capital expenditure 664 550 

Depreciation and amortization 499 462 

   

Number of employees 2 75 79  

  

1  This includes the proportion of sales from onshore production 

licences in which EBN does not have an equity share, but is 

entitled to a proportional share of the revenues. Unless stated 

otherwise, all volumes in this annual report are stated in billions 

m3 of natural gas (35.17 Mj at 0 degrees Celsius), based on the 

percentage of EBN’s participation. 

2 Total number of employees at year-end 2010. 

Key f igures





E B N  |  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0  |  5

Contents

Preface by Jan Dirk Bokhoven

About EBN

Corporate Social Responsibility

Report of the Executive Board

Interview with Renee Stoeller

Interview with Hans Diekman

Report of the Supervisory Board

Corporate Governance

Risk Management

Financial Statements

General

Principles for the valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of profit

Statement of comprehensive income

Balance sheet

Summary of changes in shareholder’s equity

Statement of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements 

Notes to the statement of comprehensive income

Notes to the balance sheet

Policy to control financial risks 

Other notes

Other information (Profit appropriation)

Independent auditor’s report

Glossary

Key figures

Contact information

 6

10

16

20

28

30

36

40

46

52

54

55

60

61

62

63

64

65

67

72

76

78

80

82

84

85

I

II

III

IV

V

VI

VII



6  |  E B N  |  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0

Does gas still have a future?

Definitely. A few years ago, the Dutch government 

stated that the Dutch gas reserves were dwindling 

and would even run out in a decade or so. At the 

same time, the government stated its aim of having a 

sustainable national energy supply in fifty years’ time. 

It is questionable whether a completely sustainable 

energy supply is in fact possible as, for the time being, 

there are not enough alternatives to ensure continuous 

supply from sustainable sources of energy. So there 

will be plenty of opportunities for gas in the next 

forty to fifty years. The only questions are how many 

opportunities will there be and where will the gas 

come from? 

The major sources are indeed becoming depleted, 

and the discovery of a new field the size of the 

Groningen field is not very likely. But there are other 

possibilities. That is why EBN formulated its 30/30 

challenge in 2009: by 2030, the Netherlands will be 

producing 30 billion m³ of gas annually from small 

fields. 

How achievable is that ambition?

In theory, there are enough small fields in the 

Netherlands to meet the 30/30 challenge. However, 

there are two important prerequisites. In the first 

place, exploration and production prospects in the 

Netherlands will have to be sufficiently attractive 

to investors from a commercial perspective. In the 

second place, the chosen options will need to be 

able to compete cost-effectively with gas imported 

via pipelines and LNG carriers into the Netherlands. 

Although the challenge of meeting these prerequisites 

Preface by Jan Dirk Bokhoven 

According to Jan Dirk Bokhoven, Chairman of the Executive Board of Energie Beheer Nederland, gas will remain 

an essential component of the Dutch energy mix. With the large fields becoming depleted, the challenge is to 

develop small fields more profitably by using new technology and achieving better harmonisation of licences and 

permits. That requires EBN and its partners to be more proactive. As Jan Dirk Bokhoven explains, ”Our ambition 

to produce some 30 billion cubic metres of gas from small fields by 2030 should be achievable provided all 

partners involved truly cooperate.”

“  Our ambition to produce some  

30 billion cubic metres of gas  

from small fields by 2030 should  

be achievable provided all partners 

involved truly cooperate.”
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may seem tough, experience from the US shows that 

it is not impossible. Technological breakthroughs 

mean ‘shale gas’ can be produced more cheaply 

than LNG. New techniques have created enormous 

potential for new resources, and more parties than 

previously are consequently becoming interested 

in producing smaller quantities of natural gas. We 

firmly believe that, within ten to twenty years, these 

techniques will also be applied in the Netherlands. 

What else do you think should happen?

To ensure continuity of gas supply, it is important 

to start releasing areas where at present little or no 

activity takes place. The 2010 covenant between 

the Ministry of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and 

Innovation and the oil companies stipulates that 

operators may voluntarily relinquish their offshore 

licence areas. In our view, it is important to start 

releasing these areas soon so as to enable new 

players to develop new activities. We also should not 

wait too long before applying the same measures 

to onshore permits. The Netherlands is becoming 

progressively more densely populated, which makes it 

increasingly difficult to develop new activities.

What are EBN’s specific plans?

We have three strategic objectives that guide all our 

activities. In addition to encouraging continuity in 

exploration and production, another EBN strategic 

objective is to actively manage joint ventures. Our 

joint venture partners 

will notice that we are 

playing a more proactive 

role than in the past 

and that we will enter 

into discussions about 

long-term developments 

more often. For some, 

that will take some getting used to. The challenge for 

EBN is to convince our partners of the benefits of our 

more proactive role, while making sure they do not 

see this as a threat. Initially, some critical eyebrows 

were raised about EBN being the first customer for 

Fugro’s major 3D seismic study. But without EBN’s 

commitment and participation, this type of study 

would not very readily be embarked on. And even so 

we have not been able to make it sufficiently clear 

to market parties that they will all benefit from these 

developments and our other initiatives. We realise that 

“ Releasing licence areas  

is crucial for developing new  

operations rapidly.”
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we need to explain even more clearly what we are planning to 

do. And that we need to do our job more effectively and smartly. 

Our third strategic objective is to use the deep subsurface 

in a profitable way. EBN is already the joint owner of three 

underground gas-storage facilities, and a fourth, Bergermeer, is 

under construction. All these storage facilities are located in fully 

or partly depleted gas fields. Empty 

gas fields that are not suitable for gas 

storage can alternatively be used for 

CO2 storage. 

Gas exploration and production is 

not considered sustainable. Gas 

production is also opposed by 

certain sectors in society. What is 

EBN’s view on this?

We believe that, as a partner in investments, we share the 

responsibility for the impact of our activities on society. 

Social responsibility, as we see it, starts with transparency. 

As an industry, we need to be more transparent and explicit 

about what we are doing, how we are working and about our 

emissions. EBN is currently examining the main effects that our 

operations have on society so that we can report on them, set 

objectives and then actively address these issues. 

How has EBN changed and how do its employees feel 

about the change?

Our mission requires a new attitude and increased self-

awareness among our employees and, therefore, in our 

organisation. Many new employees have joined, while 

experienced employees have left the organisation and our 

workforce is generally becoming younger and more diversified. 

EBN obviously faces challenges in establishing and retaining 

sufficient expertise and promoting a proactive role. We are 

demanding different skills from our employees than in the 

past, and everybody deals with this differently. Although these 

changes sometimes make employees uncertain, they also 

understand and appreciate that the changes create a whole 

range of new opportunities. We consider it essential to support 

them in discovering and performing their new roles.

“ Market par t ies can  

benef i t  f rom our exper t ise  

and exper ience.”
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How do you view the future?

The year 2010 was an interesting year in various respects, both 

in the market and certainly also for EBN as an organisation. 

Over the coming years, we will be building on our expertise and 

experience of the market, and exploring new opportunities.  

We will be investing in new technology as we see opportunities 

for applying technology that has been successfully proven in 

other countries and especially in making even better use of 

currently producing fields. 

Dutch gas has played a key role in supplying energy over 

the past fifty years. And we believe this role should continue 

for many years to come. The Netherlands has also clearly 

expressed its ambitions in its Gas Hub plans. EBN has close 

links with government authorities, making us a good discussion 

partner, while on the other hand we are also close to the market 

and so can share expertise, experience and resources.  

We intend to do so increasingly effectively and efficiently in order 

to be able to meet our 30/30 challenge. Our 30/30 challenge can 

be met, provided all the parties involved work together properly.

“ Socia l  responsibi l i t y,  

as we see i t,  star ts with 

transparency.”
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   “EBN’s ambit ion is  to produce some 30      

                               f rom smal l  f ie lds by      
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About EBN

      b i l l ion cubic metres of  gas annual ly 

      2030 (the 30/30 chal lenge).”

I
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About EBN 

Profile

EBN is active in the exploration for, production of and trading in oil and gas in the Netherlands. Together with 

other national and international oil and gas companies we invest in exploration and production and in gas-stora-

ge facilities in the Netherlands. The initiative for exploration, development and production activities is up to the 

licence holders. EBN does not aim to be the operator in the joint ventures, but invests, facilitates and shares its 

knowledge. EBN is also involved in selling Dutch natural gas via its interest in GasTerra. EBN distributes all the 

profits from these activities to the State, our sole shareholder. EBN also advises the government on the mining 

climate in the Netherlands and on new applications of the subsurface. 

Vision

Gas plays a key role in the Dutch energy supply and the Dutch economy: natural gas revenues contribute 

substantial amounts to State revenues. World-wide demand for energy is expected to double between 2005 and 

2050. Although sustainable energy will meet part of this higher demand, there will also still be a significant 

demand for fossil fuels. Gas is by far the cleanest fossil fuel, with the lowest CO2 emissions per unit of energy 

generated. It would therefore be logical to allocate a larger share of the fossil-fuel component in the energy mix to 

gas. And EBN is dedicated to this cause. Even though there is still plenty of gas available, parties active in the 

mining sector will have to join forces to reveal and develop the many sources of Dutch gas. 

Ambition

EBN’s ambition to produce some 30 billion cubic metres of gas from small fields by 2030 (the 30/30 challenge). 

Gas exploration and production is no longer just capital-intensive, but is also becoming increasingly knowledge-

intensive. Society’s acceptance of gas is also becoming an increasingly important issue. EBN therefore supports 

the development and exchange of knowledge needed to ensure that Dutch gas remains part of our energy 

supply, both now and in the future. 

We have translated our vision into three strategic objectives, whereby we seek to: 

• Actively manage our joint ventures in exploration and production activities; 

• Ensure continuity in exploration and production (E&P); and 

• Profitably use the subsurface.

Active management of joint ventures 

EBN participates in the exploration for and production of oil and gas. We actively manage our participation in 

joint ventures and focus on optimally developing existing gas reserves and on cost containment. We only 

participate in projects that are expected to produce a positive return. Sustainability and long-term relationships 

with all our stakeholders are also essential to our activities.
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Where needed, EBN takes the initiative to encourage licence holders to explore for and produce more oil and 

gas. Because EBN participates in virtually all the licences in the Netherlands it has a good overview of all fields, 

infrastructure and best practices. This means we can provide added value to licence holders and partners in the 

oil and gas industry. EBN also seeks to play an active role in projects that are given less priority by our partners, 

such as developing marginal or sub-economic fields, research into new gas-production techniques and 

extending the life of essential offshore infrastructure.  

“ EBN understands the 

impor tance of  active 

dia logue with our par tners 

and other stakeholders.” 
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Ensuring continuity in E&P 

In order to meet its 30/30 challenge, EBN intends to help develop as yet undeveloped fields, to map new 

potential deposits in open areas and to keep the offshore infrastructure optimal and operational for as long as 

possible. This is because economic gas production from new fields will only be possible if we can keep using the 

existing infrastructure. In addition, the Dutch government and EBN will need to work together to create attractive 

conditions for new investments and investors in the Dutch E&P sector. 

Utilisation of the subsurface

This objective covers activities such as gas storage, which are outside oil and gas production, but have obvious 

synergy with EBN’s core activities and expertise. We are also looking into other opportunities to make sustainable 

use of the subsurface, such as geothermal energy or CO2 storage. A pilot project currently running in K12-B is 

storing 300 kilotons of CO2 annually. 
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“ A c lear course has been 

set  for  the nex t f ive 

years.”
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 “One of  the main objectives of  our CSR      p

    in  which EBN par t ic ipates are,  as far       a

                                                                         r
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Corporate Socia l  Responsibi l i t y

R      pol icy is  to ensure that  activ i t ies 

r       as feasib le,  carr ied out in a susta inable,          

                                                                         responsible manner.”

I I
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Corporate Socia l 

Responsibi l i t y

EBN is committed to corporate social responsibility (CSR). Our CSR policy outlines how we address this 

responsibility. The CSR policy is based on three key themes:

• EBN as a responsible partner;

• socially relevant;

• excellent people.

These themes were formulated in a workshop and in various interviews with internal stakeholders.

EBN as a responsible partner

One of the main objectives of our CSR policy is to ensure that activities in which EBN participates are, as much 

as feasible, carried out in a sustainable, responsible manner. In our joint ventures we proactively enter into a 

dialogue with all our partners about the long-term and short-term programmes defined for these fields.

A key aim is to increase the transparency of the chain of our activities through relevant reporting on E&P 

activities. EBN has consequently started compiling an overview of the environmental reports currently routinely 

prepared in the oil and gas industry. In the short term, we are seeking to identify trends and translate these into 

long-term objectives. These trends may include issues such as CO2 emissions per cubic metre of gas produced, 

prompt replacement of Freon cooling systems and making an inventory of the chemicals in use. 

Socially relevant

Dialogue with partners

EBN is seeking to maintain an active dialogue with its partners and other stakeholders. In the past year, for 

instance, we have had discussions on preventing wells watering out, on shooting 3D seismic surveys using 

state-of-the-art technology and on shale gas. In addition, EBN seeks to develop and share knowledge with 

partners and knowledge institutes so as to ensure the continuity of oil and gas operations in the Netherlands. 

EBN is currently participating in five joint research projects. 

Helping to develop knowledge

EBN has concluded that there is currently little knowledge about deep geothermal energy in the Netherlands. 

Many parties nevertheless have plans to drill geothermal wells, without having sufficient knowledge of the 

subsurface. EBN is therefore actively supporting Delft University of Technology’s geothermal project to increase 

our expertise of the subsurface and of new drilling techniques. EBN also commissioned TNO to perform a study 

on combining oil or gas exploration with geothermal research. 

Sponsorship and financial support

EBN provides financial support to organisations and events that it considers appropriate in view of its mission 

and commitment to society. Details of our sponsorship policy can be found on our website. EBN provides 

funding for organisations such as the Clingendael International Energy Programme (a think-tank for geopolitical
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issues) and the Energy Delta Institute (a training and knowledge institute for the gas industry). EBN also supports 

professional, academic and student organisations of varying sizes that are seeking to encourage public interest 

in the oil and gas sector and promote research in these fields or disseminate and increase the knowledge 

available in the E&P industry. From 2011, EBN will fund a prize for the best Master’s thesis on innovative 

 techniques for oil and gas production. EBN also provides funding to various-sized initiatives seeking to increase 

the general public’s knowledge of the sector by, for example, setting up a deep-subsurface theme room in the 

Museon, a popular-science museum in The Hague. 

Disseminating knowledge

EBN employees presented papers at various national and international venues in 2010, thus helping to disseminate 

EBN’s knowledge and experience. In 2010, EBN employees gave 27 lectures on subjects such as the Dutch 

mining climate, shale gas and CCS. 

Excellent people

EBN is a socially involved and responsible employer. We want to attract and retain the right sort of people and 

help them excel. We do this by investing in developing their professional knowledge and personal skills. More 

information on the people at EBN can be found in the Report of the Executive Board.

It is also important that our employees, too, feel a need to contribute to society. The EBN volunteer fund has 

been set up to support our employees in their involvement in various projects and to fulfil one of the objectives of 

our sponsoring policy. From 2011, the organisation will annually make a total of c 25,000 available for this 

purpose. Employees can apply to this fund for a financial contribution to projects in which they themselves are 

actively involved.

Managing and monitoring performance

In 2011 we will start formulating Key Performance Indicators (KPIs) for each activity in order to monitor our CSR 

performance and progress towards our objectives.
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               “We suppor t  the code’s basic      pr

                                                                        t
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Repor t  of  the Executive BoardI I I

      pr incip le that  transparency 

                                                                        to stakeholders is  crucia l.”
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Repor t  of  the Executive Board

Looking back at 2010

EBN completed its move from Heerlen to Utrecht in 2010 and the internal organisation is now at full strength. 

EBN’s main focus now is on its ambition to produce some 30 billion cubic metres of gas from small fields in the 

Netherlands by 2030 (the 30/30 challenge).

Participation in licences 

In 2010, two production licences in which EBN participates came into force. EBN has also been invited to 

participate in eight new exploration licences. Five exploration licences were relinquished and two production 

licences were merged into one. As at 31 December 2010, EBN participated in 126 production licences and 

48 exploration licences. 

Capital expenditure

The year 2010 saw good levels of capital expenditure in the joint ventures in which EBN participates. Total 

expenditure was approximately c 1.6 billion, which is comparable with previous years. Most projects were 

implemented according to plan. EBN’s share of total capital expenditure was c 607 million, of which c 152 million 

was for exploration and appraisal wells, c 138 million for production wells and c 317 million for construction 

operations. 

Exploration and appraisal wells

Faster drilling, particularly of wells, resulted in slightly lower expenditure than forecast. As a result of the recession, 

the costs of renting drilling platforms and other support services and equipment in 2010 were considerably lower 

than in previous years. If this trend continues, it will have a positive effect on the number of marginal gas and oil 

projects that can be developed. 
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With 13 completed exploration and appraisal wells, we remained below our target of 15 in 2010. Ten wells struck 

gas, while the other three were dry or encountered sub-economic quantities of hydrocarbons. The drilling of two 

exploration wells was postponed to 2011 because of priority being given to drilling production wells. The total 

number of 30 completed wells (exploration, appraisal and production) was exactly on target. 

Developing oil and gas fields

EBN invested in developing 17 gas fields and three oil fields in 2010; nine of these projects were carried over 

from 2009, while 11 new projects were started. These projects resulted in five gas fields and one oil field coming 

on stream in 2010: three onshore and three offshore. The largest and most important projects in which EBN is 

currently investing are those involving redevelopment of the Schoonebeek oil field, construction of the Berger-

meer gas storage facility and development of the five new gas fields. 

3D seismic

In order to promote exploration for new reserves, in particular under the North Sea, EBN was, in 2010, the first 

company to buy Fugro’s seismic data covering the D, E and F blocks. Other interested parties can also buy 

licences for all or part of the area from Fugro Multi Client Services. This organisation acquires seismic surveys 

covering an area of more than 6,000 km², from the British-Dutch median line to the German-Dutch offshore 

boundary. That area was covered by comparatively few seismic surveys up to now, and has only been sparsely 

explored. The survey, which will be completed in 2012, will yield high-quality 3D seismic data, outlining the oil 

and gas potential of the area. 

Enhanced Gas Rec.

Field Development

Gas Storage

Seismic

Planned well

Projects 2010
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Three other new offshore 3D seismic surveys started in 2010. This will bring the total area covered by new 3D 

seismic surveys to around 8500 km², which is comparable to all the 3D seismic shot in the Netherlands between 

2003 and 2009. EBN is confident that this increase in exploration activity will eventually result in new oil and gas 

fields being developed under the North Sea.

Incentive measures

The Ministry of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation has introduced two measures to further encourage 

E&P activities in the Dutch sector of the continental shelf. Firstly, a tax incentive was announced for marginal 

fields, while, secondly the Fallow Acreage Covenant has come into effect. The latter encourages voluntary 

relinquishment of licence areas in which activities are not or no longer taking place. The covenant will facilitate 

access to these areas for new interested parties. EBN expects both measures to be major incentives for offshore 

exploration and production activities. 

Production and reserves

The relatively severe 2009 - 2010 winter and the cold fourth quarter of 2010 contributed to considerably higher 

gas sales than expected. As a result, production from the Groningen field exceeded 50 billion m³. Conversely, 

production from small fields was 0.5 to 1 billion m³ lower than expected as a result of technical problems and 

delays in a number of new gas fields coming on stream. EBN’s share of gas sales amounted to 33 billion m³, 

which was 4 billion m³ higher than in 2009. EBN’s 2010 oil production totalled approximately 1.1 million barrels 

(BOE), which is 39% less than in the preceding year. Production of gas condensate (BOE) was 25% lower than in 

2009 at 0.9 million barrels.

In determining its reserves, EBN applies the definitions laid down in 2007 in the Petroleum Resources Management 

System. On 31 December 2010, gas reserves (on a 100% field basis) in the fields in which EBN participates 
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amounted to 1139 billion m³, of which EBN’s share is 462 billion m³. On a 100% field basis this means a net 

decrease of 78 billion m³ in comparison with the position at 31 December 2009. This decrease was attributable 

to production of 78 billion m³, while 24 billion m³ reserves were added as a result of new projects and a revision 

of the 2009 production. This addition to reserves, however, was offset by a downward revision of reserves by  

24 billion m³. More than 78% of the gas reserves are located in the Groningen field, while the remainder is 

contained in small onshore and offshore fields.

Sales

Gas markets in Northwest Europe were very volatile in 2010. The current linkage between oil and gas prices 

means that many major gas buyers faced high purchase prices on the one hand, whereas gas on the spot 

market was temporarily cheap because of a fall in demand. When the lower prices resulted in higher demand for 

gas in the spot market, prices at trading centres in Northwest Europe such as NBP and TTF started rising in 

mid-2010 and ended up higher than in previous years. Oil prices also continued rising from summer 2010 

onwards.

Result for the year

With annual sales of c6.5 billion, the result for the year was the same as in 2009. This was thanks to a combination 

of ongoing high demand and high gas prices, both those linked to oil and those on the spot market. As operational 

expenses remained at the forecast level, net profit for the year came out at c2.1 billion. Payments to the State, 

including taxes, totalled c5.3 billion. EBN raised new capital in the market to finance capital expenditure and 

repay existing loans. Despite the volatility in the financial markets that resulted from the Greek debt crisis, EBN 

made a successful 10-year CHF 450 million bond issue in May, which yielded some c318 million at an all-in rate 

of 3.18%. 

“ EBN continuously monitors 

the gas pr ice so that  i t  

can adapt i ts  strategy i f  

necessar y.”
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Gas Hub

EBN participated in the Ministry of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation’s Gas Hub discussion platform 

during the year. The final report of the four working groups was published in early December. The Brattle Group 

also reported on the Gas Hub, calculating the potential added value of natural gas for the Netherlands in the 

future. On the basis of these reports, the minister stated that market parties should pay more attention to 

investment and innovation, as well as to regulation and communicating the importance of natural gas for the 

Netherlands. EBN is participating in a working group that, in 2011, will formulate concrete recommendations for 

improving the mining climate in the Netherlands. 

Activity plans

EBN has formulated activity plans for seven topics. These plans outline how we should set about removing 

obstacles so that we can develop oil and gas reserves and meet our 30/30 challenge. EBN will update the plans 

annually and, wherever possible, share the results of studies with external stakeholders. In the next few years, 

research projects and concrete field developments will establish whether and to what extent these gas resources 

can help contribute to meeting EBN’s strategic 30/30 challenge. 
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A number of conditions will have to be met to achieve these objectives: 

• More exploration;

• More production from currently producing fields; 

• Development of difficult-to-produce, sub-economic fields;

• Development of as many different forms of gas as possible; and 

• Keeping crucial infrastructure in the North Sea operational for as long as possible.

 

The seven subjects that EBN will explore further and that could make a contribution are:

 

 Topic 

1  Exploration

2   Sub-economic fields

 (stranded fields)

3  Extending field life

4    Extending the life of  

important infrastructure

5    Difficult-to-produce gas  

(tight gas sands)

6  Shallow gas

7   Shale gas

 

Activities

Looking for oil and gas in areas where:

- infrastructure is in danger of disappearing because of a lack of activity; 

- little activity is taking place; or

- building of specialised technical know-how is needed. 

Developing known gas fields that previously could not be produced because 

of technical or economic challenges.

Producing more gas from existing fields by applying various life-extending 

techniques.

Developing a strategy to keep infrastructure that is crucial for future gas 

production operational for as long as possible and looking into cost-effective 

and sustainable methods for decommissioning and removing old production 

platforms.

Studying the opportunities for establishing a knowledge centre for fraccing 

applications (fracturing reservoir rock) in cooperation with Dutch universities 

of technology and the oil and gas industry.

Mapping all potential shallow gas deposits in the northern part of 

the North Sea.

Making an inventory of the potential of shale gas in the Netherlands and 

studying the possible environmental effects of shale-gas production.
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EBN is par t ic ipating in the 

Schoonebeek redevelopment

The Nederlandse Aardolie Maatschappij (NAM) started redeveloping the Schoonebeek oil 

field in Drenthe in 2007. EBN has a 40% stake in this project. Renee Stoeller, a facility 

engineer, has been involved in the project for two years and works closely together with 

colleagues from EBN and NAM.

As Renee explains, “Schoonebeek, the largest onshore oil field in Western Europe, was 

discovered in 1943. Between 1947 and 1996, total oil production was 250 million barrels.  

In 1996, the field was closed because the remaining oil was too viscous to produce.  

Even though the reservoir rock still contained another 750 million barrels of oil, all the wells 

were permanently abandoned, all the equipment was dismantled, the pipelines removed and 

the sites, where necessary, remediated.”

New technology will generate 120 million barrels of oil

New technological developments since 1996 mean the oil can once again be produced 

economically. NAM and its partner EBN have been actively redeveloping the Schoonebeek oil 

field since December 2007. 

Of the 750 million barrels of oil still contained in the reservoir rock, 120 million barrels are 

expected to be producible. As Renee explains, “The rest will be left behind because in oil 

production the recovery factor is generally much lower than in gas production. Normally, 

about 35% of oil is recoverable, whereas for gas this is around 80-85%. Oil is simply harder to 

produce. However, with a bit of luck, production techniques may have improved even further 

in ten years’ time, and then we can achieve even more efficient recovery of the Schoonebeek 

oil resources.”

Steam injection

Drilling of new wells from new drilling locations started in 2009. As Renee explains, “Steam 

injection is needed to make the viscous oil easier to produce. Instead of the traditional 

‘nodding donkeys’, we now use modern, highly efficient pumping units. A total of 44 new 

production wells, 25 injection wells and 4 observation wells will be drilled at 18 new extraction 

locations. Steam is generated by heating ultrapure or demineralised water, which prevents the 

equipment from scaling up with impurities. Insulated pipelines transport the steam to the well 

sites where it is injected through horizontal injection wells into the pores of the reservoir rock, 

which is Bentheimer Sandstone. The steam heats the oil in the reservoir rock. The oil liquefies, 

which makes it flow more easily to the horizontal production wells, where plunger pumps 

pump up the oil and water mixture. At the surface, the oil is separated from the water and 

transported via an underground pipeline to the BP refinery in Lingen, Germany.”

“
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Project planning

As Renee points out, “The first oil is expected to be produced in early 2011. But that won’t 

mean the end of the project. We’ll keep drilling to finish the other planned wells and the 

cogeneration plant, where steam is produced at the same time as electricity is generated. 

Two drilling rigs will actually be operating simultaneously between December 2010 and March 

2011. The last well is expected to be drilled in September 2011. The project will be completed 

once the cogeneration plant comes into operation in late 2011 or early 2012. The final well 

locations will be completed in 2012.”

What does Renee see as the most striking aspect of this project? “That the investment 

decision was taken in 2007, which was only eleven years after production from Schoonebeek 

ceased. You can’t help thinking: if only they had kept those wells open. It just goes to show 

how rapidly technology is advancing.” 

“ Instead of the traditional  

‘nodding donkeys’, we now use  

modern pumping units.”

”
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“
 

Bergen Gas Storage 

Preparations for the Bergermeer gas-storage facility project started in 2007. Gas will be stored 

in this depleted gas field close to Alkmaar and serve as a subsurface reserve buffer that can 

be retrieved at any time. The oil and gas operator Taqa saw the investment and exploitation 

opportunities in this project. EBN was also interested as underground gas storage ties in with 

its objective of making ‘profitable use of the subsurface’. Moreover, EBN is already participating 

in the Bergen production licence and so has been involved in the Bergermeer gas-storage 

facility ever since the first outline sketches of the project were prepared.

Peak demand 

Hans Diekman, Commercial Manager at EBN, has been involved in the project since 2007.  

As Hans explains, “Gas production is declining, both in the Netherlands and everywhere else 

in Northwest Europe. There is sufficient gas available for another fifty to eighty years of 

production, but the underground reserves are declining and so eventually we will not be able 

to meet peak demand. Once the facility is operational, we will be able to store gas in the 

Bergermeer gas-storage facility in summer because demand in that season is lower. And then 

we can use the stored gas in the winter.” 

Cooperation with Taqa

Hans manages the project for EBN. “The operator Taqa is responsible for day-to-day 

operational supervision and cooperates closely with partner EBN. This cooperation is proving 

very productive for both parties.” 

 

Preparation and implementation

It will be another four years before the Bergermeer project actually becomes operational.  

As Hans explains, “We are expecting to put the gas-storage facility into operation in 2013.  

The length of time needed is due to the project’s complexity, the need to obtain the required 

permits and licences and the time required to fill the storage facility with a volume of cushion 

gas. Drafts were submitted to the Ministry of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation in 

September 2010 and the period during which the public can comment has passed. The views 

that were submitted are now being assessed. Once the licence has been granted, drilling and 

other construction work can start.”
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“ What’s fascinating about  

this project is that we are  

building one of the largest 

commercial gas-storage  

facilities in Europe.”

Fascinating project

What does Hans consider the most fascinating aspect of this project? “Obviously the fact  

that we are building one of the largest commercial gas-storage facilities in Europe.  

Almost c 800 million is being invested, and so it is not just a major project for EBN, but also 

for the Netherlands as a whole. And EBN is closely involved in this. Managing EBN’s contribution 

to the project is challenging. And the Taqa project team is also very professional and inspiring 

to work with.”

”
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The people of  EBN 

To ensure continuity at EBN it is important to develop our organisation and to increase its professionalism.  

We do so by, for example, seeking to attract talented, self-motivated professionals, and then encourage and 

retain them. We are very keen not only to retain our employees, but also to motivate them by offering them 

challenging work and developing their knowledge and skills.

Workforce

At the end of 2010, EBN had 75 employees (FTE: 69.5), three of whom (1.5 FTE) were seconded via an 

employment agency. One third of the employees has a part-time contract. In 2010, EBN supervised internships 

and graduation thesis projects for five students from Delft University of Technology and Utrecht University. 

The percentage of female employees is 33.3%, a slight decrease on 2009. In 2010 the proportion of university 

graduates increased by 7% to 64%. The average age of our employees is now 42.7 years. The age range of our 

workforce is now also more evenly spread across the different age groups than in previous years, with more than 

half our employees now aged under 45.

Training 

Our internal training programme, the EBN academy, took further shape during the year under review.  

The academy offers standard and individual professional courses and training. Employees may choose from a 

selected range of training institutes to further their development. There are also customised programmes for new 

employees, new graduate recruits, technical specialists and management. In 2010, employees spent an average 

of 40 hours on training activities.

Health and safety

In 2010 EBN made an inventory of the risks associated with employee health and safety in the workplace.  

Twelve issues warranting further attention were identified, and a detailed action plan was drawn up to tackle 

these issues. The main health risk is working at computer workstations. The workplaces of all EBN employees 

will be examined early 2011.

At the 2010 year-end the EBN emergency response team had six members. Four of these employees completed 

an industrial emergency response course during the year, while the other two did a refresher course. 

Two evacuation exercises were held during the year. No safety incidents occurred at EBN in 2010. 

Absenteeism

Despite a reduction in short-term absenteeism from 2.3% to 1.1%, total absenteeism increased considerably  

over the year to an average of 4.1% by the year-end. This was due to three employees suffering protracted illness 

during the year.
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Employee satisfaction survey

An employee satisfaction survey was conducted in 2010. The results showed a major improvement since 2008. 

Four out of five employees, i.e. 80%, consider EBN a ‘great place to work’ often or always, whereas the figure for 

2008 was 60%. The main improvement in satisfaction levels was in respect of ‘transparent communication of the 

vision towards which the organisation is working and how it intends to achieve that’ (this improved from 27% to 

61%). There is still room for improvement, however, particularly in the fields of quality of work (less paper, more 

challenges) and the management and coaching of employees (clear expectations, workload).

Works Council

The Executive Board and the Works Council held four consultative meetings in 2010. Informal consultations  

with the Works Council were also held regularly. The main topics discussed were:

• Completing the transition from Heerlen to Utrecht;

• Selecting a new Health and Safety Executive;

• Problems surrounding the transfer of pensions of EBN employees who were formerly on DSM contracts;

• Amendment of the EBN working conditions regulations;

• Streamlining the EBN organisation as at 1 January 2011. 

A new Works Council was elected in the final quarter of 2010. As from 1 January 2011, the members of the 

Works Council are: J. Piket (chairman), M. Boubin, L.R. Swart and E. Wellenstein. 
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Outlook 

Forecast for 2011

The economy is gradually recovering and so demand for gas is increasing. The balance between supply and 

demand is expected to improve over the coming year, and so EBN expects that gas sales will in 2011 be 

comparable to those in 2010. Production from small fields is expected to remain at the same level as in 2010.  

As a result of the Schoonebeek field being redeveloped, EBN’s oil production is expected to increase to 

approximately 3.8 million barrels a year. Sales and profits are expected to remain approximately the same.

Exploration and production activity levels will remain high in 2011. EBN expects the total number of production 

and exploration licences to increase further from 174 to 188. Total capital expenditure is expected to be close to 

c 2 billion, of which EBN’s share will be c 770 million. This will enable 15 exploration and appraisal wells and 46 

production wells to be drilled, 22 of which will be in the Schoonebeek field. EBN is also working on the development 

of 19 fields, 11 of which will come on stream in 2011. We are not expecting any field to be abandoned in 2011.  

In order to maintain and, where possible, increase Dutch E&P activity levels, EBN and its partners will carry out 

various studies into the potential of shale gas deposits in the Netherlands.

Apart from exploration and production, the main activity for EBN in 2011 will be its work on the Bergermeer 

gas-storage facility. All the necessary preparations have been made in the past few years, and construction will 

start in 2011. With respect to Carbon Capture and Storage (CCS), EBN will participate in the ROAD discussions 

and will continue participating in K12-B.
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Forecast for 2012 - 2015 

According to current forecasts, production of gas from small fields will decrease from 31 to 18 billion m³ between 

2012 and 2015. The ‘Groningen ceiling’ means that this decline in production will only partly be offset by 

increased production from the Groningen field. In addition, several offshore installations will be decommissioned. 

As a result of these various developments, EBN’s gas production will decrease from 78 to 64 billion m³. EBN’s oil 

production is expected initially to rise to over 12 million barrels in 2013, particularly thanks to increasing production 

from the Schoonebeek field, and will then gradually decrease to 9 million barrels a year. 

Between 2012 and 2015 EBN and its partners from industry will focus more on promoting gas so as to make this 

fuel a key component in the energy mix. The initial results of our 30/30 challenge should also become noticeable 

in this period. If the Dutch shale gas resources can be produced economically, initial activities will start in this 

period.

Signed by

J.D. Bokhoven

D.G. Roest
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Repor t  of  the Superv isor y Board

Supervisory Board

The Supervisory Board met four times in 2010. Each meeting was attended by all the Board members.  

The Supervisory Board approved various decisions of the Executive Board, including investment decisions.  

In addition, the Supervisory Board discussed the following topics: EBN’s long-term ambition (the 30/30 

challenge), as well as the Strategic Long-Term Plan, risk management, developments in shale gas and CO2 

storage, the financial return-on-investment criteria to be adopted by EBN, the legal and financial embedding of 

non-public tasks in the EBN organisation and various subjects of discussion with NAM. Developments in the 

‘Gasgebouw’ partnership were also discussed at two of the meetings. 

The Executive Board and Supervisory Board jointly paid a working visit to N.V. Nederlandse Gasunie.

The Supervisory Board discussed the performance of the two boards at a meeting that was not attended by the 

Executive Board. The Supervisory Board members Gert-Jan Kramer and Hein van Oorschot resigned at the 

General Meeting of Shareholders in 2010 in accordance with the schedule for resignation by rotation. Both were 

reappointed for a further four-year period. 

Schedule for resignation by rotation 

 Date of first appointment Date of reappointment End of 4-year term 

R.M.J. van der Meer 1 January 2006 2009 2013

A.H.P. Gratama van Andel 1 January 2006 2009 2013

G-J. Kramer 1 January 2006 2010 2014

H.M.C.M. van Oorschot 1 January 2006 2010 2014

EBN is not a listed company and so the Corporate Governance Code is not applicable to it. Nevertheless EBN, 

like other State-owned entities, complies with the Code as far as possible and relevant. The section on Corporate 

Governance in this report includes an explanation of where EBN does not comply or only complies partially with 

the Code. 

The Supervisory Board satisfies the independence criteria and profile approved by the shareholder, as stipulated 

in article 12.2 of the Articles of Association. 

The chairman of the Supervisory Board is the first point of contact for EBN’s Executive Board. The Supervisory 

Board has collective responsibility. All members of the Supervisory Board are also members of the remuneration 

and audit committees. The remuneration and selection committees have been combined and are referred to as 

the remuneration committee. Gert-Jan Kramer is the chairman of the remuneration committee, while Arnold 

Gratama van Andel chairs the audit committee.
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Audit Committee

The audit committee met twice in 2010. The Executive Board attended both meetings, while the external 

auditors, Ernst & Young, attended one of them. During the meetings, the audit committee reviewed the annual 

report, financial statements and auditors’ report for 2009. The committee members also discussed funding plan 

and credit facilities, the cash flow forecast, risk management and the assessment of the financial returns from 

various investment projects approved by the Supervisory Board.

Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee met four times in 2010. The committee was also actively involved in streamlining 

the new organisation as of 1 January 2011 and in the appointment of a new Director Finance. Since 1 January 

2010 two members of the Executive Board have been employed by EBN, while the third member is employed by 

DSM and has been seconded by DSM to EBN.

Financial statements

The Supervisory Board has reviewed the annual report, the financial statements and the report of the auditors 

Ernst & Young. The Board can accept these and recommends that the General Meeting of Shareholders should 

adopt the financial statements accordingly. 

Supervisory Board

Utrecht, 29 March 2011

Signed by

R.M.J. van der Meer

Chairman

A.H.P. Gratama van Andel

G-J. Kramer

H.M.C.M. van Oorschot
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Corporate Governance

As EBN is not a listed company, it is not required to apply the Corporate Governance Code. EBN adheres, 

however, to the government policy for state participations. In other words, it endorses the principle of the Code 

that transparency towards stakeholders is crucial, as well as generally structuring its activities in accordance with 

the principles of the Code. This does not apply to all the best practice provisions included in these principles as 

most of these are not relevant and, therefore, not applicable to EBN. 

 

EBN complies with the following principles of the Corporate Governance Code: 

•  II.1  (Executive Board: role and procedures);

•  II.3  (Executive Board: conflicts of interest);

•  III.1  (Supervisory Board: role and procedures);

•  III.2  (Supervisory Board: independence);

•  III.3  (Supervisory Board: expertise and composition);

•  III.4  (Supervisory Board: roles of the chairman of the Supervisory Board and the company secretary);

•  III.5  (Supervisory Board: composition and roles of the three key Supervisory Board committees);

•  III.6  (Supervisory Board: conflicts of interest);

•  III.7  (Supervisory Board: remuneration);

•  V.1  (Financial reporting);

•  V.2  (Role, appointment, remuneration and evaluation of the performance of the external auditors);

•   V.3 and V.4 (External auditors’ relationship and communications with company bodies).

” EBN values c lar i t y  and  

transparency a lso with in  

i ts  own organisation.”
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Shareholder

EBN is a private limited company, with the Dutch State as its sole shareholder. All shares are held by the Ministry 

of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation. One General Meeting of Shareholders was held in 2010.  

In addition, the Ministry and EBN held regular informal consultations.

The shareholder appoints the Executive and Supervisory Boards of EBN and also adopts the financial 

statements. Under EBN’s Articles of Association, certain Executive Board decisions require the shareholder’s 

approval, such as decisions on entering into or ending joint ventures or investments exceeding c200 million.

Management of the company

The EBN Executive Board has collective responsibility for managing the company and determining its policy.  

The Executive Board regulations, which have been approved by the Supervisory Board, divide the duties among 

the members of the Executive Board. In principle, the Executive Board meets once a week. If necessary, 

decisions are submitted to the shareholder and/or the Supervisory Board for approval. The Executive Board is 

also responsible for a properly functioning internal risk management and control system, which is reported on in 

the next section of this annual report. 

The shareholder determines the policy on Executive Board remuneration. The Supervisory Board determines  

the remuneration of the individual members of the Executive Board within the framework of that policy.

The Executive Board remained the same during the year under review. It consisted of three members: Jan Dirk 

Bokhoven (Chairman), Joost Haenen (Commercial Director) and Dick Roest (Director of Finance). Joost Haenen 

resigned on 1 January 2011, and Dick Roest will resign on 31 March 2011. From 1 April 2011, the management 

team will, in addition to the Chairman, consist of the Director Asset Management, the Director Corporate Affairs, 

the Director Finance and the Director Technology. 

Director Asset

Management

Director

Technology

Director

Corporate Affairs

Director

Finance

Chairman

Executive Board

E&P Asset

Groups A,B,C
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Support

Business
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Supervisory Board

EBN has had a Supervisory Board since 1 January 2006, with the chairman and members being appointed by 

the shareholder. The Supervisory Board is responsible for supervising and, where necessary, advising the 

Executive Board. EBN’s Executive Board in turn provides all the necessary information to the Supervisory Board. 

External auditors

The shareholder is responsible for appointing external auditors, with the Supervisory Board having a right of 

nomination. Ernst & Young were appointed in 2009 to audit the financial statements for the years 2009, 2010 and 

2011.

Code of conduct and regulations protecting whistleblowers

EBN also values clarity and transparency within its own organisation. It has consequently adopted a code of 

conduct applying to all its employees. The code of conduct is intended to guide choices made and decisions 

taken. We also use the code of conduct as a means of assessing conduct, both of the company and of individual 

employees. Individual employees who have complaints can contact a confidential advisor or the complaints 

committee. Under the regulations designed to protect whistleblowers, employees may report alleged cases of 

abuse or improper conduct within the company to the chairman of the Executive Board or the Supervisory 

Board. No such cases were reported in 2010.

EBN’s Articles of Association and other regulations are available at www.ebn.nl.

“  The economy is gradual ly  

recover ing and so demand  

for  gas is  increasing.”
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Risk management and internal  control

EBN further refined its risk management and internal control system in 2010. The basic principle remains 

structural embedding of risk management in all EBN’s business processes. We put this principle into practice by 

translating the organisation’s objectives into concrete responsibilities and introducing a proper performance 

assessment scheme. 

Risk analyses

In 2010 EBN carried out in-depth company-wide risk analyses, both at strategic and operational levels.  

This involved identifying the risks involved in all EBN’s areas of operation, and also risks resulting from our 

strategic objectives, departmental objectives and activities. We also adopted measures to limit and contain these 

risks, while also assessing whether sufficient measures were already in place, and where reinforcement was 

required. Concrete action plans were then drawn up to improve risk management. The operational risk analyses 

were followed by internal statements of responsibilities signed by the responsible managers and thus directly 

underpinning the Executive Board statement of responsibilities.

These initiatives, which have contributed greatly to risk awareness within the organisation, focused specifically on 

ensuring that EBN has proper management measures in place, while the focus over the coming year will be on 

ensuring that these measures are correctly implemented. 
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Risk management 

Using financial instruments as a means of covering financial risks can itself create risks. In accordance with the 

requirements of Book 2, Article 391:3 of the Dutch Civil Code, the objectives and policy of risk management are 

discussed in the annual report insofar as they relate to the use of financial instruments and the management of 

these risks. In accordance with Book 2, Article 391:1 of the Dutch Civil Code the annual report provides information 

on the objectives and the policy of the legal person and the group companies included in the legal person’s 

financial statements. Attention must in any event be paid to the policy with regard to covering risks associated 

with all significant types of transactions contemplated. Attention must also be devoted to the price, credit, 

liquidity and cash flow risks to which the legal person and the group companies are exposed (Dutch Accounting 

Standards Board 400.111). A more detained explanation can be found in the financial statement from page 72 

onwards.

Risk profile

The risk categories mentioned below constitute significant threats to the realisation of our strategic objectives. 

Investment climate in the Netherlands

Once important infrastructure has disappeared, there is a risk that areas with E&P potential will become less 

attractive. To reduce that risk, EBN analyses the expected infrastructure development in detail and discusses 

this intensively with all parties involved. The next ten years will be particularly crucial for drilling and developing 

new offshore prospects in order to be able to preserve the existing infrastructure. EBN and the Ministry of 

Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation jointly promote opportunities for exploration and production in the 

Netherlands and regularly evaluate whether there are any obstacles. 
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An unfavourable mining climate may result in oil companies shifting their investment priorities and new technology 

applications to more attractive parts of the world and in our then being unable to attract the right new parties. 

This would mean that new projects in exploration and innovative gas-production techniques would require even 

more efforts in the future. We seek to manage this risk by participating in a working group aimed at improving the 

mining climate. The working group includes a wide range of stakeholders from industry, government, suppliers 

and knowledge institutes. 

EBN’s strength

It is essential for EBN to have sufficient stakeholder support for its strategic objectives. A key risk in this context is 

that stakeholders will not be receptive to EBN’s ideas, that EBN will not have sufficient freedom to achieve its 

objectives, that EBN will not have sufficient opportunities to influence operators and that society’s acceptance of 

oil and gas production will decline. EBN contains these risks through measures such as active relationship 

management, by ensuring transparent communications on EBN’s strategy and roles and by using standard 

agreements with operators. EBN also uses its expertise to share relevant and objective information with the 

parties involved. 

External factors

Low market prices for prolonged periods could result in fewer investments by E&P companies. EBN continually 

monitors gas prices in order, if necessary, to be able to adapt its strategy. EBN does not use tools such as 

hedging to manage the risks of fluctuating market prices. Its low operating cost structure means that low market 

prices have little effect on EBN’s continuity. 

Internal risk management and risk containment systems

The Executive Board reviews and makes adjustments if potentiaal or actual issues are identified during the 

analysis and monitoring of internal risk management. It is always possible that risks that are not currently 

recognised or considered substantive may at a later stage turn out to affect EBN’s ability to achieve its business 

objectives. 

The risks involved in EBN’s operational activities are managed primarily through the adopting and enforcing of 

standardised business processes. Management has also put in place other quality assurance systems, such as: 

• describing the organisational structure; 

• delegating responsibilities; 

• management contracts; 

• job separation; 

• planning & control cycle; 

• financial reporting requirements; 

• authorisation rules; 

• active management of the insurance portfolio; 

• periodic management reports and business reviews. 
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Internal audits were once again conducted in 2010, with the results being discussed with the Executive Board 

and those responsible for implementing the processes.

The Executive Board did not make any significant changes in the internal risk management and risk containment 

system during the year under review. It is planned to set up a detailed sales accounting system in 2011 as EBN 

depends on information supplied by third parties for its internal monitoring of flows of cash and goods. The 

understanding and management of these information flows need to improve. 

Executive Board statement of responsibilities 

The Executive Board is responsible for proper internal risk management and for evaluating the effectiveness of 

this management. Actual business performance in the financial year is periodically compared with approved 

plans and budgets and discussed during regular Executive Board meetings. The Executive Board declares that 

the financial reporting systems operated properly during the year under review and provide a reasonable degree 

of assurance that the financial statements do not contain any material inaccuracies. 

“ 4 out of 5 employees consider  

EBN a ‘great place to work’.”
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General
The Executive Board has prepared and, by resolution of 29 March 2011, formally approved the financial statements 

of Energie Beheer Nederland B.V. (EBN) for the 2010 financial year. The financial statements were subsequently 

submitted to the Supervisory Board. Pursuant to Article 20.2 of the Articles of Association the Supervisory Board 

also provides a preliminary recommendation to the shareholders. The financial statements will be submitted to 

the General Meeting of Shareholders on 21 April 2011, where they will be adopted and subsequently published. 

All shares in EBN are held by the Dutch State. 

The financial statements of EBN for the 2010 financial 

year have been prepared in accordance with the 

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and 

interpretations of the International Financial Reporting 

Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) as applying on 31 

December 2010 and as accepted for application 

within the European Union.

The financial statements of EBN pertain mainly to 

EBN’s share in joint ventures in the field of oil and gas 

production in the Netherlands and the Dutch part of 

the continental shelf. The information shown relates to 

EBN’s share in the assets and liabilities, as well as in 

the revenues and expenses of such joint ventures. 

EBN also participates in a number of companies.

Joint ventures

Joint ventures are defined as contractual or other 

company cooperation agreements with partners with 

whom EBN jointly performs operations. These 

operations use assets that are jointly controlled by 

EBN and its partners. EBN accounts proportionally for 

these joint assets and related liabilities, expenses and 

revenues in the financial statements.

The Maatschap Groningen [Groningen Partnership] is 

the main joint venture. In total, EBN participates in 23 

onshore production licences, 103 offshore production 

licences, 48 exploration licences, the Emmen gas 

purification plant and 4 underground natural gas 

storage facilities. The participation percentages in 

these joint ventures range from 40% to 50%. EBN also 

participates in the K13-Den Helder gas processing 

plant and pipeline, the K13-Extension pipeline (through 

a subsidiary) and the F3/A6 Extension pipeline 

(through a subsidiary).

EBN holds 100% of the shares in K13 Extensie Beheer 

B.V. and F3/A6 Extensie B.V. as a result of the above 

participations in the K13 Extension and F3/A6 

Extension pipelines. The financial significance for EBN 

of these two participations is not material. These 

participations have therefore not been consolidated. 

The financial statements of EBN consequently reflect 

both the consolidated and non-consolidated positi-

ons.

Associates

EBN participates for 40% in GasTerra B.V. and for 45% 

in NOGAT B.V. In addition, EBN has a 12% interest in 

the NGT Extension.



E B N  |  A n n u a l  R e p o r t  2 0 1 0  |  5 5

The financial statements have been prepared in 

accordance with the historical cost convention,  

unless stated otherwise.

Conversion of foreign currencies

The euro is the operating and reporting currency of 

EBN. This also applies to its joint ventures. Commer-

cial transactions and borrowings in foreign currencies 

are shown in the financial statements at the spot 

exchange rates applying on the transaction dates. 

Balance sheet items denominated in foreign currencies 

are converted at the spot exchange rates applying on 

the balance sheet date. Differences in exchange rates 

resulting from settlement of these transactions and 

conversion of balance sheet items are charged to the 

profit for the year.

Current versus non-current assets and liabilities  

An asset is classed as current if it is expected to be 

realised within 12 months of the balance sheet date.  

A liability or debt is classified as current if it will be 

settled within 12 months of the balance sheet date.

 

Property, plant and equipment

Exploration wells

Expenses for exploration wells are capitalised (wells 

under construction). If an exploration well turns out to 

be dry, the costs incurred are charged to 

 comprehensive income. These assets are not 

depreciated as long as there is no production from a 

gas or oil exploration well. 

Expenses related to exploration wells that are older 

than 12 months are charged to comprehensive 

income, unless:

(i)  they are located in an area where significant capital 

expenditure is required before production can 

commence, and

(ii)   commercially recoverable quantities have been 

found, and 

(iii)   further exploration or appraisal activities are taking 

place, i.e. additional exploration wells are being 

drilled or there are definite plans to do this in the 

near future.

The Executive Board regularly evaluates whether it is 

appropriate to capitalise and continue capitalising 

expenses relating to exploration drilling. Exploration 

wells older than 12 months are additionally evaluated 

to determine whether any facts or circumstances have 

changed and whether the above criteria still apply. 

Reimbursement of partners

The costs of reimbursements paid to partners – mainly 

exploration costs and interest payments related to 

proven reserves – are capitalised and amortised on 

the basis of the Unit-of-Production method (see next 

section for more information).

Property, plant and equipment for production

Property, plant and equipment for the production of oil 

and gas and other fixed assets are shown at cost less 

depreciation and any impairment in value. 

Replacement investments that constitute improvement 

are capitalised, whereas identical replacement 

investments are charged as an expense to 

 comprehensive income.

The estimated costs of decommissioning, dismantling 

and removal of platforms and other installations are 

capitalised as part of the cost of the property, plant or 

equipment concerned.

Property, plant and equipment for the production of oil 

and gas are depreciated on the basis of the Unit-of-

Production (UoP) method: the ratio between the 

production in the financial year and the PMRS reserve 

categories proved and probable reserves as at  

1 January of that financial year. These reserves are 

determined in accordance with the definitions laid 

down by Society of Petroleum Engineers (SPE), the 

World Petroleum Council (WPC), the American 

Association of Petroleum Geologists (AAPG) and the 

society of Petroleum Evaluation Engineers (SPEE) in 

the Petroleum Resources Management System. 

Reserves are based on the current estimates of EBN’s 

proved and probable reserves and production profiles. 

Pr inciples for  the valuation of  assets and 

l iabi l i t ies and determination of  prof i t 
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Other property, plant and equipment are depreciated 

on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful 

economic life. For trunk transport pipelines and 

facilities for the underground storage of natural gas 

(UGSs), an economic life of 20 years is initially 

estimated. For buildings, an economic life of 10 years 

is assumed. Land is not depreciated.

The estimated remaining economic life of this property, 

plant and equipment is revised every year, taking 

account of economic and technological obsolescence 

and normal wear and tear.

A property, plant and equipment item is no longer 

included in the balance sheet once it has been 

divested or when no future economic benefits are 

expected from its further use or in the event of 

surrender of the licence or sale of the licence. Any gain 

or loss resulting from the property, plant or equipment 

that is no longer included in the balance sheet is 

charged to the statement of comprehensive income.

Capital expenditure and wells under construction

Capital expenditure and wells under construction are 

not depreciated.

Financing costs of projects

Since 1 January 2009, the financing costs of projects 

are capitalised. The interest rate used for the financial 

year is based on the average interest rate applying on 

long-term borrowings in the past financial year.

Financial fixed assets

An associate is an interest in an entity on which EBN 

can exert significant influence, but over which it cannot 

exercise decisive control. Associates are shown in 

accordance with the equity method. This means that 

EBN’s share in an associate is shown as EBN’s share 

in the net assets of this entity, less any impairment. 

EBN’s share in the profit or loss of the associate is 

charged to comprehensive income.

If EBN’s share in the loss of an associate exceeds the 

carrying amount of that associate, including any other 

receivables, the carrying amount is reduced to nil.  

No further losses are accounted for unless EBN has 

assumed responsibility for the associate through a 

guarantee or other commitments. Unrealised gains 

and losses on transactions with associates are 

eliminated in proportion to EBN’s share in these 

associates.

Impairment

An assessment is made on each balance sheet date 

as to whether the carrying amount of a non-current 

asset (property, plant and equipment or associate) 

exceeds its realisable value (the higher of the indirect 

and direct realisable values). If so, the value of the 

asset will be deemed to be impaired. If an asset does 

not generate sufficient independent cash flow, the 

realisable value is determined for the cash-generating 

unit to which the asset belongs. A typical EBN 

property, plant and equipment type cash-generating 

unit is a concession. To determine the indirect 

realisable value, estimated future cash flows are 

discounted at a rate before taxes, on the basis of the 

market interest rate, plus a mark-up for the asset’s 

specific risks.

If the realisable value of an asset is lower than the 

carrying amount, the carrying amount will be reduced 

to the realisable value. Impairment can be reversed, 

either wholly or partially, in the event of a change in the 

estimate that is of significance for determining the 

realisable value. Impairment is shown as a separate 

item in the statement of comprehensive income.

Inventories

Inventories of gas stored underground and materials 

and equipment are shown at the lower of average 

purchase prices or net realisable values. Inventories of 

above-ground condensate and oil are shown at their 

net realisable values at the year-end.

Receivables

Receivables are shown at amortised cost less any 

amount deemed necessary for bad and doubtful 

debts. On first recognition, receivables are shown at 

fair value. 

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are cash in hand, bank 
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balances and deposits at banks with a remaining term 

to maturity of less than three months. Amounts owed 

to banks are shown as current liabilities. 

Shareholder’s equity

EBN’s shareholder’s equity consists of share capital 

and any dividend declared. The Dutch State is EBN’s 

sole shareholder. The dividend payable to this 

shareholder is shown as a liability in the period for 

which it is due, in accordance with EBN’s Articles of 

Association. An exception to this rule is made for the 

proposed final dividend, which does not become a 

liability until it has been approved by the General 

Meeting of Shareholders.

Provisions

Provisions are shown in the balance sheet if the 

following conditions are satisfied:

(i) there is a legal or actual obligation as a consequence 

of an event in the past, and 

(ii) it is likely that assets will be withdrawn from the 

company in order to meet this obligation, and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be reliably 

estimated.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, 

provisions are determined by calculating the present 

value of the forecast cash flows at a discount rate 

before tax.

Once the present value has been calculated, any 

increase in provisions as a result of the passing of time 

is shown as interest expense. The provision for 

deferred tax liabilities is not discounted.

The provision for decommissioning and restoration 

costs is designed to cover the expected estimated 

costs of decommissioning, dismantling, and land 

restoration on the basis of present-day requirements, 

technology and price estimates. The amount of this 

provision is based on information provided to EBN by 

the operators. Any changes in this information will, 

after EBN has made its own assessment, generally 

result in a corresponding change in the capitalisation 

of decommissioning and restoration costs of the 

relevant property, plant and equipment.

The provision for ground subsidence is designed to 

cover certain additional liabilities arising during the 

production phase.

Liabilities

Outstanding borrowings are shown at amortised cost. 

On first recognition, such items are shown at fair value 

less costs. Borrowings in foreign currencies are 

converted at the exchange rates applying on the 

balance sheet date. Premiums or discounts on 

borrowings are amortised during the term to maturity 

of the loan concerned. Interest expense is charged to 

the result in the period to which it pertains, using the 

effective interest rate method.

Pensions

EBN provides a defined benefit pension scheme, 

which is managed as part of the ABP pension fund.  

In its financial statements EBN treats the scheme as a 

defined contribution pension scheme because the 

pension fund is unable to provide the information 

required to determine EBN’s share in the underlying 

pension obligations, fund investments and costs of the 

scheme in a consistent and reliable manner.

Contingent assets and liabilities

Contingent assets and liabilities are not shown in the 

balance sheet.

Emission rights

As a result of its interests in the various joint ventures, 

EBN must comply with legislation designed to reduce 

greenhouse gas emissions. The operator trades the 

emission rights on behalf of the joint venture partners.

The operator reserves emission rights in order to be 

able to satisfy delivery obligations. These rights are not 

shown in the balance sheet. Income is reported when 

the operator sells EBN’s share in surplus emission 

rights. If the operator has to purchase additional 

emission rights, EBN records an expense item to the 

extent of its share.
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Net sales

Net sales from the sale of gas, oil and condensate are 

accounted for at the time of delivery, which is when 

ownership of and the risks associated with the 

delivered goods pass to the buyer. Revenues from oil 

and gas production generated from assets in which 

EBN participates with other producers are shown in 

proportion to EBN’s relative interest in these assets. 

Operating expenses

Expenses are determined on the basis of historical 

costs. These include the share in the expenses of the 

joint venture that corresponds with EBN’s interest, as 

well as the costs of managing the joint venture. 

Operational costs also include levies out to the Dutch 

State. 

Financial income and expense

Interest income and interest expense are shown on 

a time-proportionate basis. Interest expense also 

includes interest accrued on provisions.

Share of profit from associates

The share in the profit from associates is shown as  

the share of the profit for the year under review  

corresponding with EBN’s interest, after deduction  

of taxes.

Taxes

Taxes on profits are determined in accordance with 

the balance sheet method. Tax liabilities are specified 

in the statement of comprehensive income except 

insofar as they relate to an item included in other 

comprehensive income.

Current tax expenses are taxes that are expected to 

be payable on the taxable profit for the year, based on 

the tax rates applying on the balance sheet date, net 

of any adjustments for taxes payable in respect of 

previous years.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are shown on the 

basis of the expected fiscal consequences of 

 temporary differences between the fiscal and 

commercial carrying amounts of assets and liabilities. 

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are calculated on the 

basis of the tax rates that are applicable or materially 

determined on the balance sheet date, and in 

accordance with the tax regulations expected to apply 

when the specific deferred assets and liabilities are 

settled.

Financial derivatives

Financial derivatives are shown at fair value on initial 

recognition and then at the current fair value prevailing 

on each subsequent balance sheet date. Any resultant 

gains or losses are charged to comprehensive income. 

EBN does not apply hedge accounting.

International Financial Reporting Standards 

(IFRS)

No reporting standards that came into force in 2010 

have been applied in the 2010 financial statements 

since none of those standards is applicable to EBN.

The 2010 financial statements do not take account of 

the consequences of the following standards, the 

application of which has been in force since the start 

of the 2010 financial year. These standards are not 

applicable to EBN and, therefore, have no effect:

(i)  IFRS 1, Amendment, First-time Adoption: 

additional exemptions

(ii)  IFRS 2, Amendment, Shared-based Payment: 

group and Cash settled arrangements

(iii) IFRS 3, Business Combinations

(iv)  IFRS 5 Non-current Assets held for sale and disc

(v) IFRS 8 Operating Segments

(vi) IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows

(vii) IAS 17 Classification of lease of land

(viii) IAS 18 Revenue

(ix) IAS 36 Impairment of Assets

(x) IFRC 12 Service Concession Arrangements

(xi)  IFRIC 15 Agreements for the Construction of 

Real Estate

(xii) IFRIC 16 Hedge of a net investment

(xiii) IFRIC 17 Distribution of non-cash assets

(xiv) IFRIC 18 Transfer of assets from customers

(xv) IFRIC9/IAS 39 Amendment eligible hedged items
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EBN has opted not to apply the following new 

standards, amendments to standards and new IFRIC 

interpretations, the application of which is mandatory 

from the 2010 financial year or subsequent years:

(i) IFRIC 7  Financial Instruments: Disclosures

(ii) IFRIC 9  Financial Instruments

(iii) IFRIC 24  Related Party Disclosures

(iv)  IFRIC 32  Financial Instruments, presentation 

- Classification of Rights Issues

(v)  IFRIC 14  Prepayments of a Minimum Funding 

Requirement

(vi)  IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with 

Equity Instruments; as from 2011

EBN does not expect application of these new 

standards, amendments to standards and new IFRIC 

interpretations to result in any material consequences 

for the company’s financial statements in future 

financial years.
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Statement of  comprehensive income

 

 

in millions of euros       

 

 note  2010   2009 

 

net sales 2  6,486 2%  6,387 

 

levies 3 2,571   2,238 

operational costs 4 627    722 

depreciation and amortization 5 499   462  

 

operating expenses   3,697 8%  3,422 

 

operating profit   2,789 -6%  2,965 

 

 

financial income 6  16   22

financial expense 6  -91   -89 

share of profit from associates 7  54   52 

 

       

      

pre-tax profit   2,768 -6%  2,950 

taxes 8  -692 -6%  -739 

net profit 9  2,076 -6%  2,211 

other comprehensive income   -   - 

Total comprehensive income   2,076   2,211 

 

Change 

compared 

to 2009
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Balance sheet

 

 

in millions of euros       

Assets  ultimo ultimo Liabilities  year end year end 

 note 2010 2009  note 2010 2009 

 

Non-current assets    Shareholder’s equity 14  

property, plant 

       and equipment 10 3,564  3,448  share capital  128  128  

associates 11 113  113  retained earnings  46  30  

  3,677  3,561    174  158  

 

   

    Non-current liabilities    

    provisions 15 1,338  1,255  

    deferred tax liabilities 8 48  40  

    borrowings 16 1,558  1,004  

    other 17 19  18  

      2,963 2,317

   

Current assets    Current liabilities    

inventories 12 39  12  borrowings 16 504  1.064  

receivables 13 1,244  1,007  tax   112  246  

derivatives 19 331  98  other 18 1,567  893  

cash and cash equivalents  29  -      

  1,643  1,117    2,183  2,203  

   

Total  5,320  4,678  Total  5,320  4,678  
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in millions of euros       

 Share Retained Total 

 capital earnings equity 

   

Balance at 1 January 2008 128 32 160 

   

net profit - 2,211 2,211 

other comprehensive income  - - - 

net profit after tax - 2,211 2,211 

final dividend 2008 - -32 -32 

interim dividend - -2,181 -2,181 

  

   

Balance at 31 December 2009 128 30 158 

  

net profit - 2,076 2,076 

other comprehensive income  - - - 

net profit after tax - 2,076 2,076 

final dividend 2009 - -30 -30 

interim dividend - -2,030 -2,030 

 

  

Balance at 31 December 2010 128 46 174

Summary of  changes in 

shareholder’s equity

Retained profits of c 46 million represent the proposed final dividend. Total earnings per share for 2010 amounted to c 7,294, which 

was a decrease of 6% compared with 2009. 

For more information, please refer to note 14.
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Statement of  Cash Flows

 

 

in millions of euros   

   2010  2009 

 

Operating activities

net profit from continuing operations  2,076  2,211 

Conversion to net cash provided by operating activities     

- income from participations  -54  -52  

- dividend received  54  52  

- depreciation and amortization  499  462  

- change in working capital *  388  142  

- change in provisions  26  -11 

- interest                  - charged to comprehensive income 75  67  

 - received 2  20  

 - paid -35  -56 

- taxes      - charged to comprehensive income 692  739                             

 - paid -818  -774 

- transfers  50  45  

   879  634 

Net cash from operating activities  2,955  2,845 

Investing activities      

property, plant and equipment  -607  -713  

Net cash used in investing activities  -607  -713 

      

Financing activities      

profit distribution  -2,060  -2,481 

loans taken up  318  - 

loans repaid  -319  - 

change in debts to credit institutions -258  281  

Net cash from financing activities  -2,319  -2,200 

Change in cash and cash equivalents  29  -68 

 

Balance cash and cash equivalents at 1 January  -  68

Balance cash and cash equivalents at 31 December  29  - 

 

* Change in working capital:      

- inventories   -27  -3 

- receivables   -237  849 

-   current liabilities (excluding loans, debts to credit institutions and profit distribution)  652  -704 

   388  142
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(1) General information

All amounts in these explanatory notes are in millions 

of euros, unless stated otherwise. 

Estimates and assessments

Estimates and assessments have to be made in the 

preparation of the financial statements. These have 

consequences for the amounts reported for assets 

and liabilities, income and expenditure items and the 

related reporting of contingent assets and liabilities on 

the date of the financial statements. Results can be 

influenced by such estimates and assessments.  

In those cases, these explanatory notes set out the 

principles that management considers to be most 

important and that are usually the most difficult to 

estimate due to intrinsic uncertainties. The provision 

for decommissioning and restoration costs and the 

capitalisation of decommissioning and restoration 

costs in the balance sheet is largely based on 

information provided by the operators. In principle, 

EBN adheres to the information provided by operators 

regarding production data, and determines proven and 

probable gas and oil reserves in accordance with the 

definitions laid down by SPE, WPC, AAPG and SPEE 

in the Petroleum Resources Management System 

(PMRS). More information on the way in which this 

provision is calculated can be found in “Basis for the 

valuation of assets and liabilities and determination of 

profit”, section “Provisions” on page 57.

The most important estimates are those required to 

determine realisable values in the case of depreciation 

(see statement of cash flows and note 10), classification 

of pensions and corporation tax (deferred tax).

The Executive Board emphasises that future events 

may differ from projections and that estimates have to 

be adjusted regularly.

Notes to the f inancia l  statements 

of  Energie Beheer Neder land B.V.
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Notes to the statement of 

comprehensive income

(2) Net sales

EBN performs one main activity: exploration for and 

production of natural gas and oil. All sales are realised 

in the Netherlands. The assets in which EBN participates 

are also located in the Netherlands. Information on the 

main debtors can be found in note 23. 

Net sales in 2010 from ordinary activities amounted to 

c 6,486 million, representing an increase of  

c 99 million (2%) compared to 2009.

The increase in sales was mainly due to the 14% 

increase in the volumes of natural gas sold, even 

though selling prices fell by 10%. Sales of oil and 

condensate were also lower than in 2009, but this was 

partly compensated by higher oil prices.

(3 and 4) Levies and operational costs 

 2010 2009  

levies 2,571 2,238  

operational costs 627 722

Levies were c 333 million (15%) higher than in 2009. 

This item mainly comprises the special payments 

made to the Dutch State in respect of production from 

the Groningen field in 2010, i.e. the MOR payments, 

amounting to c 2,475 million and the State’s share of  

c 91 million. The increase in the payments to the State 

in 2010 was mainly due to higher gas sales from the 

Groningen field.

Operational costs relate mainly to production and 

transport costs.

At the end of 2010, some employees were still 

seconded by DSM to EBN. Total salary costs are 

included in the operational costs and amounted in 

2010 to c 8.2 million (2009: c 7.2 million), of which  

c 6.4 million (2009: 5.3 million) comprised gross 

salaries, c 0.4 million social security costs (2009: c 0.3 

million), c 1.2 million pension costs (2009: c 1.0 million) 

and c 0.2 million other costs (2009: c 0.6 million).

As at the balance sheet date, the company did not 

have any contractual obligations – other than the 

possibility of higher contributions in future – to pay 

additional amounts in the event of the pension fund 

being in deficit.

(5) Depreciation and amortization

 

 2010 2009  

depreciation of property, 

             plant and equipment 451 433 

depreciation of property, plant 

    and equipment by reason of 

    decommissioning and restoration 48 29 

Total 499 462

Depreciation of the capitalised decommissioning and 

restoration costs increased as a result of a new higher 

estimate of the required decommissioning and 

restoration costs. For further information, please refer 

to note 15.

 

(6) Financial income and expense

 2010 2009  

interest income 1 22 

other financial income 15 -

total financial income 16 22 

 

interest expenses -57 -52

interest expense 

     on discounted provisions -24 -27

other financial income and expenses -10 -10

total financial expenses -91 -89

Net financing costs -75 -67
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Interest income was lower than in 2009 because of the 

considerably lower amount of cash available in the 

year under review and the fall in market interest rates. 

Moreover, the figures for 2009 included some 

non-recurring interest income.

Other financial income and expenses relates primarily 

to the currency fluctuations of borrowings and 

associated derivatives, with borrowings shown at 

amortised cost and derivatives shown at fair value.

(7) Share of profit from associates

   2010 2009 

GasTerra B.V.  14 14 

NOGAT B.V. 33 31 

NGT-Extension 7 7  

Total 54 52

(8) Taxes

 

 2010 2009 

Current tax expenses  

current year 684 777 

Deferred tax expenses   

arising from temporary differences 8 -38

Total  692   739

The effective tax burden for 2010 was 25.5%, which is 

the same as in 2009. The nominal corporation tax rate 

in the Netherlands amounted to 25.5% in 2010 (2009: 

25.5%).

Net deferred tax assets and liabilities increased by  

c 8 million as a result of the following changes:

 

 2010 2009

Balance at 1 January   

deferred tax assets 25 36 

deferred tax liabilities -65 -114 

Total -40 -78 

Movements as a result of:   

-  differences between commercial  

and fiscal valuation of property,  

plant and equipment -2 49

-  differences between commercial  

and fiscal valuation of provisions -6 -11

Balance at 31 December  -48 -40

of which:   

- deferred tax assets 19 25 

- deferred tax liabilities -67 -65 

  

Movement in assets  -6 -11

Movement in liabilities -2 49

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are future tax assets 

and liabilities arising, for example, from temporary 

differences between the amounts calculated in 

accordance with commercial principles and those 

calculated in accordance with fiscal standards.

(9) Net profit

The net profit for 2010 from continuing operations 

amounted to c 2,076 million, which was c 135 million 

(6%) lower than in 2009. 
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Notes to the balance sheet

(10) Property, plant and equipment  

 

The composition of and developments in this item are shown below:

in millions of euros       

 Total production,  drilling reimburse- capitalisation of capital 

  transport   ments     decommissioning  expenditure & 

  and storage    and storage wells under 

  facilities   costs construction 

Balance at 1 January 2009       

cost 10,244 5,421 2,280 1,412 734 397 

depreciation & amortization 6,840 3,946 1,470 1,136 288 - 

carrying amount 3,404 1,475 810 276 446 397 

Changes in 2009       

cost       

- capital expenditure 713 171 73 16 - 453 

- commissioning - 171 148 - - -319 

- capitalisation of borrowing costs - - - - - - 

- capitalisation of decommissioning 

                  and restoration costs -163 - - - -163 - 

- decommissioning -36 -33 -6 - 3 - 

- writing-off of dry wells -45 - - - - -45 

depreciation & amortization       

- depreciation & amortization -462 -240 -172 -21 -29 - 

- decommissioning 37 34 6 - -3 - 

 44 103 49 -5 -192 89 

Balance at 31 December 2009       

cost 10,713 5,730 2,495 1,428 574 486 

depreciation 7,265 4,152 1,636 1,157 320 - 

carrying amount 3,448 1,578 859 271 254 486

Changes in 2010       

cost       

- capital expenditure 607 139 48 -  -  420 

- commissioning - 80  82  -   -  -162 

- capitalisation of borrowing costs 1  -   -   -   -  1 

-    capitalisation of decommissioning  

and restoration costs 57  -   -   -  57 - 

- decommissioning -1  -1  -   -   -   -  

- writing-off of dry wells -50  -   -   -   -  -50 

depreciation & amortization       

- depreciation & amortization -499 -250 -181 -20 -48  -  

- decommissioning  1   1   -   -   -   -  

 116 -31 -51 -20 9 209 

Balance at 31 December 2010       

cost 11,327 5,948 2,625 1,428 631 695 

depreciation & amortization 7,763 4,401 1,817 1,177 368 - 

  

carrying amount 3,564 1,547 808 251 263 695
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Capital expenditure in 2010, amounting to c 607 million, was 15% lower than in 2009 (c 713 million). This was 

allocated for c 224 million (2009: c 238 million) to onshore projects and for c 383 million (2009: c 475 million) to 

offshore projects. 

The increase in the capitalisation of the estimated decommissioning and restoration costs of installations in 2010 

was c 57 million (2009: negative c 163 million). Please refer to note 15 for further information.

As a result of the application of IAS 23 “Borrowing Costs”, the capitalised costs for the Bergermeer gas storage 

facility project increased by 3.7%, which resulted in borrowing costs being capitalised in the amount of 

c 0.7 million.

(11) Associates

EBN defines as associates its 40% participation in GasTerra B.V., its 45% participation in NOGAT B.V. and a 

number of smaller participations, including the 12% participation in the NGT Extension. The latter participation is 

included under ‘other’. Associates are shown on the basis of the equity method. The profits are distributed 

annually, and so there is no change in the amounts for which the participations are shown in the balance sheet.

 

    2010    2009 

 GasTerra NOGAT  other total GasTerra NOGAT  other total  

Balance at 1 January 86 13 14 113 86 13 14 113 

share in profit 14 33 7 54 14 30 8 52 

dividend received -14 -33 -7 -54 -14 -30 -8 -52 

Balance at 31 December 86 13 14 113 86 13 14 113

The following table shows summarised financial information on the GasTerra B.V., NOGAT B.V. and  

NGT Extension associates on a 100%-basis.

          

   NGT- 2010     NGT-   2009

  GasTerrra   NOGAT   Extensie   total   GasTerrra   NOGAT Extensie   total  

balance sheet total assets   4,582   129  11  4,722   3,295   129   11   3,435  

liabilities   4,366   10  8  4,384  3,079   6   8   3,093  

net sales   18,357   114   77   18,548   18,310   113   76   18,499  

net profit   36   68   60   164   36   71   57   164 
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(12) Inventories

  

 2010 2009 

materials 6 7 

gas 33 - 

condensate and oil - 5  

total 39 12

(13) Receivables

These can be specified as follows: 

 2010 2009 

accounts receivable 

    from associates  934 883

other trade accounts receivable 29 120

total trade accounts receivable 963 1,003 

other receivables

    and deferred items 281 4 

total 1,244 1,007 

Receivables increased by c 237 million (24%), mainly 

as a result of higher prices and sold volumes in the 

fourth quarter of 2010 compared to the fourth quarter 

of 2009. 

‘Associates’ relates to GasTerra B.V., in which EBN 

participates for 40%. 

For information on credit risks please refer to note 19. 

(14) Shareholder’s equity

 

 

 2010 2009 

Balance at 1 January 158 160 

net profit 2,076 2,211 

final dividend previous year -30 -32 

interim dividend -2,030 -2,181 

Balance at 31 December   174 158

Each month EBN pays the estimated or actual profit to 

the shareholder, the Ministry of Economic Affairs, 

Agriculture and Innovation. These periodic payments 

largely determine EBN’s balance sheet structure and 

result in a comparatively low amount of the company’s 

shareholders’ equity. On the other hand, the company 

has very substantial cash flow throughout the year. 

EBN’s financing policy is based on maintaining free 

access to the main capital markets. To this end, EBN 

has ratings from Moody’s and Standard & Poor’s, and 

these have been stable for many years at triple A.

Statutory, and also issued and paid-in, share capital 

amounted to c 128 million at the 2010 year-end (2009: 

c 128 million), consisting of 284,750 shares, each with 

a nominal value of c 450.00. 

The proposed final dividend of c 46 million (2009: c 30 

million) will be distributed after the General Meeting of 

Shareholders has adopted the financial statements. 

This amount is the total of the net profit of c 2,076 

million less the interim dividend distributed of c 2,030 

million. The proposed final dividend has not been 

deducted from shareholder’s equity.

(15) Provisions

Provisions for decommissioning and restoration costs 

cover commitments with terms of 1 to 30 years. 

Provisions for ground subsidence also cover 

 commitments with terms of 1 to 30 years. 

The provision for decommissioning and restoration 

costs is mainly based on operators’ information and is 

determined by estimating costs on the basis of current 

prices, with no account taken of inflation, and applying 

a discount rate of 2% (real interest method). The 

discounted provision is matched by an amount, 

included in property, plant and equipment, and is 

depreciated on the basis of the Unit-of-Production 

(UoP) method.
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Total provisions increased by c 83 million, which is the balance of the changes shown below:

The upward adjustment to the provision for decommissioning and restoration costs of c 81 million is mainly due 

to an updating of the estimated costs of dismantling and removing installations. The main reason for this is an 

increase in estimated costs and new views on the dates on which production will end. Present values were 

determined using the same discount rate (2%) as in 2009 (real interest method).

(16) Current and non-current borrowings

  

Debenture loans in the amount of CHF 450 million were redeemed and refinanced in 2010. No debenture loans 

or private loans are due to be redeemed in 2011. Total borrowings outstanding at year-end decreased by  

c 6 million (0.3%). The nominal values of debenture loans (CHF) and private loans (JPY) remained the same in 

foreign currency. The differences shown are due to currency fluctuations.

At year-end 2010, the amount of commercial paper that needed to be taken up was c 258 million lower than at 

the end of 2009. No security has been provided for the outstanding borrowings (total remaining debt at the 2010 

year-end: c 2,062 million). The loan agreements contain provisions limiting the provision of security.

Non-current borrowings

Non-current borrowings in the balance sheet comprise the following: 

 

 decommissioning and restoration costs  subsidence total

Balance at 1 January 2009 1,331 59 1,390 

additions - 1 1 

withdrawals -10 - -10 

revision -153 - -153 

interest 27 - 27 

Balance at 31 December 2009 1,195 60 1,255 

additions - 3 3

withdrawals -4 -1 -5 

revision 61 - 61 

interest 24 - 24

Balance at 31 December 2010 1,276 62 1,338

in millions of euros     2010 2009 

JPY 5,000 million 1.59% private loan  2004/2014 46 38 

CHF 350 million 1.75% public loan 2005/2012 280 235 

CHF 450 million 2.75% public loan 2006/2013 360 302 

CHF 400 million 3.00% public loan 2007/2014 320 269 

CHF 125 million 3.00% public loan 2007/2014 100 84 

JPY 10,000 million 1.775% private loan 2007/2017 92 76 

CHF 325 million 2.125% public loan 2010/2020 260 - 

CHF 125 million 2.125% public loan 2010/2020 100 - 

     1,558 1,004

  2010  2009 

 total of which short-term total of which short-term

debenture loans 1,420 - 1,193 302

private loans 138 - 113 -

commercial paper 504 504 762 762 

Total 2,062 504 2,068 1,064
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Borrowings in foreign currencies and associated interest charges have been fully converted into euros by means 

of cross-currency interest rate swaps. This neutralises any currency-fluctuation effects, as shown in the table. 

The average interest rate on all long-terms borrowings in 2010, including the effects of the cross-currency interest 

rate swaps, was 3.7% (2009: 3.7%). All long-term borrowings have fixed interest rates. All cross-currency swap 

borrowings also have fixed interest rates, with the exception of the cross-currency interest-rate swap associated 

with the JPY 2004/2014 loan.

The following table lists the outstanding debenture loans and private loans in order of their term to maturity: 

Amounts in millions of euros

within 1 year  - 

within 1 to 2 years          280 

within 2 to 3 years          360 

within 3 to 4 years          466 

within 4 to 5 years  - 

after 5 years          452   

Total     1,558 

More than 50% of the outstanding non-current borrowings have remaining terms to maturity of more than three 

years. Of the borrowings with remaining terms to maturity of more than 5 years, a total of c 92 million will mature 

in 2017, while c 360 million will mature in 2020.

(17) Other non-current liabilities

This item relates mainly to a debt of c 17 million (2009: c 17 million) to the Dutch State resulting from the GasTerra 

B.V. stock dividend. The Dutch State is entitled to part of EBN’s entitlement to the GasTerra B.V. dividend in the 

event of GasTerra B.V. being liquidated.

(18) Other current liabilities 

This item can be specified as follows:

  

 2010 2009

trade accounts payable 170 254

interest payments 35 12

levies 950 375

Other liabilities 412 252

 1,567 893 

The increase in levies is mainly due to the higher MOR obligation.
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Liquidity risk

EBN has a commercial paper programme of c 2,000 million. This is the same as in 2009. At the 2010 year-end, 

c 1,496 million of this had not been taken up. The following table shows the expected annual cash flows, along 

with the interest payable on the borrowings and the costs of redeeming the associated derivatives:

   2010  2010 2009

 Borrowings Interest Payment Cash flow from Total  Total 

  payments at redemption derivates cash out cash out

within 1 year 504 -45 -504  4  -545 -1,096

within 1 to 2 years 280 -46 -280  54  -272 -36

within 2 to 3 years 360 -37 -360  72  -325 -262

within 3 to 4 years 466 -25 -466  115  -376 -314

within 4 to 5 years - -11 -  -  -11 -367

after 5 years 452 -53 -452  75  -430 -62

Total 2,062 -217 -2,062  320  -1,959 -2,137

  

Credit risk  

The credit risk to which EBN is exposed consists mainly of the amount it has on deposit at credit institutions at 

any time and the value of outstanding financial derivatives. EBN limits the credit risk by only doing business with 

financial institutions with high creditworthiness and by setting specific credit limits for each financial institution  

(at least a P1 or A2 rating from Moody’s). EBN did not suffer any losses in this respect in 2010. 

Credit risk on receivables

In 2010 EBN made 90% (2009: 93%) of its sales to GasTerra B.V. (long-term rating S&P AA+). Amounts owed by 

GasTerra B.V. account for 97% (2009: 88%) of all receivables.

Interest rate risk 

The objective of EBN’s interest rate risk policy is to limit interest rate risks arising from the company’s funding and 

thus to achieve minimal interest charges. A maximum of 60% of the long-term borrowings and financial derivatives 

shall have a variable interest rate in accordance with internal guidelines. With the exception of one cross-currency 

interest-rate swap, all long-term borrowings are at fixed rates of interest.

(19) Financial derivatives

General

The main financial risks for EBN are the liquidity risk, the credit risk and the market risk (consisting of interest rate 

risk and currency risk). EBN’s financial policy focuses, in the short term, on limiting the effects of currency and 

interest-rate fluctuations on its profit, and, in the long term, on monitoring the development of market exchange 

rates and market interest rates. EBN uses financial derivatives to manage interest and currency risks, specifically 

those relating to the funding of its operations. The company does not take any speculative positions with financial 

derivatives.

Pol icy to control  f inancia l 

r isks 
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The following analysis of the sensitivity of borrowings and the related financial derivatives is based on a direct 

change of 1 percentage point in the interest rates for all currencies and maturities as at 31 December 2010.  

All other variables are assumed to be unchanged. A reduction of 1% in interest rates would result in an estimated 

decrease of c 21 million in net financing costs, based on the position as at 31 December 2010. An increase of 1% 

in interest rates would result in an estimated increase of c 19 million in net financing costs. The main reason for 

these effects is because a change in the fair value of derivatives as a result of a change in interest rate is charged 

directly to profit.

 

The following table shows the sensitivity of the fair value of the financial instruments to changes in interest rate as 

at 31 December 2010:

 

At year-end 2009, total sensitivity to changes in interest rate with regard to the fair value of the financial instruments 

ranged between a positive amount of c 33 million (+1% change in interest rates) and a negative amount of c 34 

million (-1% change in interest rates).

Currency risk 

EBN fully hedges currency risks arising from sales, purchases and borrowings at the time that the trade receivables 

or trade liabilities arise. At year-end 2010 a total of USD 10 million in trade receivables was hedged through 

forward exchange contracts (at year-end 2009 there were no outstanding trade receivables in foreign currencies 

to be hedged).

The following analysis of the sensitivity of the net debt (including financial derivatives) to fluctuations in exchange 

rates against the euro is based on a 10% movement in all exchange rates versus the euro compared to their 

levels at 31 December 2010, with all other variables remaining unchanged. A change of +10% means the euro 

weakens against the foreign currencies, while a change of -10% means the euro strengthens against the foreign 

currencies.

2010 carrying fair change in fair change in fair 

 ammount value value +1% value -1% 

cash and cash equivalents 29 29 - - 

receivables 1,244 1,244 - -

current borrowings -504 -504 -1 1 

other current liabilities -1,567 -1,567 - - 

non-current borrowings -1,558 -1,624 68 -73 

cross currency swaps 

    used for non-current borrowings 327 327 -19 21 

forward exchange contracts 

    used for current borrowings 4 4 - -

Total -2,025 -2,091 48 -51 
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At year-end 2009, total sensitivity to movements in exchange rate ranged between a positive c 3 million  

(+10% change in all exchange rates) and a negative c 3 million (-10% change in all exchange rates).

 

Fair value of financial instruments

The table below summarises the carrying amounts and estimated fair values of financial instruments:

 

                                                                     31 december 2010                                 31 december 2009  

 carrying ammount fair value carrying ammount fari value 

Assets     

associates 113 113 113 113 

current receivables 1,244 1,244 1,007 1,007

financial derivatives 331 331 98 98 

cash and cash equivalents 29 29 - - 

   

Liabilities      

non-current borrowings 1,558 1,624 1,004 1,020  

current borrowings 504 504 1,064 1,067  

financial derivatives - - - -  

other current liabilities 1,679 1,679 1,139 1,139

Fair values are determined on the basis of the present value model, in which all variables are based on observable 

market data (such as swap interest rates and currency rates). If certain inputs for the model are not observable, 

the relevant instrument is still classified in that category; provided the impact of these non-observable inputs on 

total valuation is not significant. Fair-value hierarchy explanations only need to be included for financial instruments, 

which are valued at the fair value. All financial assets and liabilities at fair values with changes in value recognized 

in comprehensive income of profit are classified at level 2.

Current receivables, cash and cash equivalents and short-term debts are shown at their carrying amounts.  

In view of the short term to maturity of these instruments, these amounts approximate their fair values.

2010 carrying fair change in change in  

 ammount value value +10% value -10%  

cash and cash equivalents 29 29 - -  

receivables 1,244 1,244 - - 

current borrowings -504 -504 -42 34  

other current liabilities -1,567 -1,567 - -  

non-current borrowings -1,558 -1,624 -182 149  

cross-currency swaps

   used for non-current borrowings 327 327 182 -149  

forward exchange contracts 

   used for current borrowings 4 4 42 -34  

Total -2,025 -2,091 - -
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The following table summarises the carrying amounts of financial derivatives, specified according to type and 

objective:

 assets liabilities total 

cross-currency interest rate swaps 89 - 89 

forward currency contracts 9 - 9 

   

total financial derivatives in relation to borrowings  98 - 98 

Balance at 31 December 2009 98 - 98 

cross-currency interest rate swaps 327 - 327 

forward currency contracts 4 - 4 

total financial derivatives in relation to borrowings  331 - 331 

Balance at 31 December 2010 331 - 331
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(20) Rights and obligations not shown in the balance sheet

As indicated in the accounting principles with respect to the valuation of assets and liabilities and the determination 

of the profit, EBN participates in numerous joint ventures. The basis for this is laid down in Agreements of 

cooperation, from which multi-year financial rights and obligations arise for the future. As an indication, the 

remaining obligations at the 2010 year-end for three major investment projects (Schoonebeek oil production, the 

Bergermeer gas storage facility and the K5CU gas-development project) amounted to c 459 million (2009: c 447 

million). In addition, EBN’s direct and indirect share in the gas reserves of fields in which EBN participates 

amounted, as at 31 December 2010, to 462 billion m3 GE (2009: 491 billion m3 GE).

 

(21) Net debt

 2010 2009

borrowings 

non-current borrowings  1,558 1,004

current borrowings 504 1,064

total borrowings  2,062 2,068

cash and cash equivalents -29 - 

financial derivatives, assets -331 -98

net debt (A) 1,702 1,970

shareholder’s equity (B) 174 158

gearing ratio A/(A+B)* 91% 93%

(22) Notes on the statement of cash flows

The statement of cash flows was prepared on the basis of the indirect method, with a comparison made 

between the opening and closing balances. Movements not resulting in an inflow or outflow of cash were 

subsequently eliminated. Information on movements in the statement of cash flows can largely be derived from 

the statements of movements in the relevant balance sheet items.

(23) Associates

GasTerra B.V. and EBN are associated companies. EBN has a total of 67 contracts with GasTerra B.V.

Of the net sales of c 6,486 million, a total of c 5,831 million was generated through GasTerra B.V. (2009: c 6,387 

million and c 5,930 million respectively).

The figure shown for receivables in 2010 includes an amount of c 934 million (2009: c 883 million) relating to 

volumes supplied to GasTerra B.V.

Other notes
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The Dutch State, being the shareholder, can be regarded as an associated party. All levies, corporation taxes 

and net profits are paid to the State. More information can be found in notes 14 and 18 in these Financial 

Statements. 

(24) Directors’ remuneration

Two members of EBN’s Executive Board have employment contracts with EBN and the other Board member has 

been seconded by DSM. The total remuneration paid to the Executive Board in 2010 amounted to c 0.8 million 

(2009: c 0.8 million). In view of the agreements with DSM on this matter, no further specification of the salaries 

can be provided.

Remuneration paid to Supervisory Board members in 2010 amounted to c 0.1 million (2009: c 0.1 million).

(25) Fees paid to external auditors

Fees paid to Ernst & Young, which are included in the operational costs, amounted in 2010 to c 443,000 for audit 

services (company and joint venture audits) (2009: c 518,000), c 0 for tax advice (2009: c 5,000) and c 144,000 

for other services (2009: c 11,000).

(26) Events after the balance sheet date

No events warranting further explanation occurred after the balance sheet date.

Utrecht, 29 March 2011

Executive Board Supervisory Board

J.D. Bokhoven  R.M.J. van der Meer

D.G. Roest A.H.P. Gratama van Andel

 G-J. Kramer

 H.M.C.M. van Oorschot
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Profit appropriation

Profits are appropriated in accordance with the provisions in Article 21 of the company’s Articles of Association. 

To the shareholder:

- part of the profit will be distributed annually as a special profit distribution;

- the remainder of the profit will be distributed as a dividend.

Events after the balance sheet date

For more information, please refer to note 26 of these Financial Statements.

 

Other information
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To: the General Meeting of Shareholders of Energie Beheer Nederland B.V.

Report on the financial statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements 2010 of Energie Beheer Nederland B.V., Utrecht, which 

comprise the balance sheet as at 31 December 2010, the statement of comprehensive income, summary of 

changes in shareholder’s equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended and notes, comprising a 

summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Executive Board’s responsibility

The Executive Board is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 

accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 

of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code, and for the preparation of the report of the Executive Board in accordance 

with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil Code. Furthermore, the Executive Board is responsible for such internal 

control as it determines is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that are free from 

material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 

audit in accordance with Dutch law, including the Dutch Standards on Auditing. This requires that we comply 

with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 

financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the 

financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of 

the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and 

fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 

circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal 

control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness 

of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial 

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 

opinion.

Independent auditor’s repor t
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Opinion with respect to the financial statements

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of Energie Beheer 

Nederland B.V. as at 31 December 2010 and of its result for the year then ended in accordance with International 

Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and with Part 9 of Book 2 of the Dutch Civil 

Code.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

Pursuant to the legal requirement under Section 2:393 sub 5 at e and f of the Dutch Civil Code, we have no 

deficiencies to report as a result of our examination whether the report of the Executive Board, to the extent we 

can assess, has been prepared in accordance with Part 9 of Book 2 of this Code, and whether the information 

as required under Section 2:392 sub 1 at b-h has been annexed. Further we report that the report of the 

Executive Board, to the extent we can assess, is consistent with the financial statements as required by Section 

2:391 sub 4 of the Dutch Civil Code.

Rotterdam, 29 March 2011

Ernst & Young Accountants LLP

signed by W.C. van Hoeven
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Bcm Billion cubic metres

BOE Barrel of oil equivalent

CCS Carbon capture and storage

Cluster Location from which multiple wells can be drilled 

Cogeneration Plant Plant producing both steam and power

COSO  The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

Corporate Governance Code (old) Code of Conduct for Companies listed on the stock exchange

Corporate Governance Code (new)  The Dutch Corporate Governance Code of the Corporate Governance Code Monitoring 

Committee

Covenant  Covenant for stimulating the exploration for and production of oil and gas reserves and the 

storage of substances in the Dutch part of the continental shelf 

CSR Corporate Social Responsibility

Cushion gas Gas that has to be present in a field or storage facility to maintain the pressure 

Dashboard Review of company-specific performance indicators

Depleted field Field that has produced all its economically recoverable hydrocarbons

E&P Exploration and production

EBN Energie Beheer Nederland B.V.

Energy mix Proportion of energy used in the Netherlands from different sources of energy 

End of field life Gas or oil field in the final phase of production

EZ (old)  Ministry of Economic Affairs

EL&I (new) Ministry of Economic Affairs, Agriculture and Innovation 

Fallow Acreage Covenant  Covenant, signed on 31 August 2010, for stimulating the exploration for and production of oil 

and gas reserves and the storage of minerals in the Dutch part of the continental shelf, as 

agreed between the Minister of Economic Affairs and mining companies with operations 

on the continental shelf.

Fuel mix Percentage of each fuel source in the total fuels used to generate energy 

Gasgebouw Public-private cooperation in the Groningen Partnership and GasTerra

Gas Hub European gas-market centre

Gas Hub Discussion Platform  Discussion forum of the Dutch government, the gas industry and knowledge infrastructure 

organisations to discuss new initiatives and strategic issues concerning the physical 

national and international gas-hub infrastructure

Gas deposit  Subsurface accumulation of producible gas

GE Groningen equivalent

Geothermal energy Thermal energy generated and stored in the Earth

GTS Gas Transport Services

HR Human Resources

HSE Health, Safety and Environment

ICT Information and Communication Technologies

IEA International Energy Agency

IFRIC International Financial Reporting Interpretation Committee

IFRS International Financial Reporting Standards

IMS Integral Management System

KPI Key Performance Indicator

Licence Holder Holder of a licence for exploration or production within the meaning of the Mining Act

LNG Liquefied natural gas

Glossary
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Marginal field  Field nearing the end of its life, which may not produce enough net income to make it 

worth developing at a specific time; but which may be worth producing if technical or 

economic conditions change. 

Mining Act  Dutch Act containing regulations governing the exploration for and production and storage 

of minerals 

Mj/m3 Calorific value of gas is expressed in megajoules per cubic metre

Multi-stage fraccing  Technique of pumping fluid down the oil or gas well at high pressure and blowing it out 

into the reservoir rock to create ‘cracks’ through which the hydrocarbons can flow to the 

well. 

MOR  “Meeropbrengstregeling Groningen “.This ‘surplus returns arrangement’ gives the State a 

larger share (up to 95%) in the higher profits from the Groningen field resulting from the 

high gas price. 

NAM  Nederlandse Aardolie Maatschappij (Dutch oil company in which Royal Dutch Shell and 

Exxon Mobil have equal shares)

NBP   National Balancing Point, a virtual trading location for the sale, purchase and exchange of 

UK natural gas.

Near-field exploration Exploration for gas close to existing production locations

NOGEPA Netherlands Oil and Gas Exploration and Production Association

Offshore At sea

Onshore On land

Operator  Party in the production process that carries out production activities on behalf of the 

partners

PRMS  Petroleum Resources Management System: international classification system describing 

the status and volumes of oil and gas resources

Recovery factor The ratio of recoverable oil to the oil in place in a reservoir

ROAD Rotterdam Storage and Capture Demonstration Project

Scorecard Review of department-specific performance indicators

Shale gas   Gas held in tight reservoirs in shales that have insufficient permeability for the gas to flow 

easily to the well bore. 

Shallow gas  Gas produced from relatively shallow reservoirs (< 800 m depth, mostly unconsolidated)

SodM=SSM Staatstoezicht op de Mijnen = State Supervision of Mines 

Spot market  Public financial market, in which surpluses are traded and shortages made up for 

immediate delivery and payment in the very short term.

State participation Shareholder status of the Dutch State 

Stranded reserves or fields  Natural gas deposits that are technically or economically impractical to develop and 

produce at a particular time

Tight gas   Gas produced from tight reservoirs in sandstones that have insufficient permeability for 

the gas to flow easily to the well bore.

TNO (old) Dutch Research Institute

TNO (new) Netherlands Organisation for Applied Science TNO

Treasury (old) Management of a company’s funds

Treasury (new) Management of a company’s cash and cash equivalents. 

TTF  Title Transfer Facility (virtual market where GTS offers market parties the opportunity to 

transfer gas that is already present in the GTS system (‘entry-paid gas’) to another party).

Watering out  A well is producing water instead of oil because the oil/water contact in the reservoir rock 

has moved upwards and reached the well bore. 
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Key f igures 

amounts in millions of euros IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS IFRS       

 2010 2009 2008 2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001  

Number of EBN participations in joint ventures                      

- production licences onshore 23 22 21 20 14 14 14 14 14 14 14

- production licences offshore 103 103 100 95 85 85 85 77 77 70 66

- exploration licences 48 45 41 26 17 19 19 22 26 31 40

                       

sales (billion m³, 100%) 80 70 73 64 66 67 67 72 63 64 66

change in % compared to previous year (100%) 14 -5 +11 -3 -1 -7 -7 +15 -4 -4 +10

                       

- sales Groningen     (billion m³, EBN share) 20 15 16 12 13        13 13 13 11 10 10

- sales small fields    (billion m³, EBN share) 13 14 15 15 15        15 15 18 15 17 19

total sales                 (billion m³, EBN share) 33 29 30 27 28        28 28 30 26 27 28

                       

average selling price of gas                        

(c-cents per m³, 35.17 MJ/m³) 18.58 20.72 26.91 20.67 21.52   16.46 16.46 13.17 13.88 12.55 13.93

                       

sales from:                      

- continuing operations 6,486 6,387 8,698 6,090 6,264 4,883 4,883 4,230 3,872 3,633 4,146

- discontinued operations           3,384 3,384        

total sales 6,486 6,387 8,698 6,090 6,264 8,267 8,267 4,230 3,872  3,633   4,146 

                       

change from continuing operations in % compared to                       

previous year 2 -27 +43 -3 +28 +15 +15 +9 +7 -12 +32

                       

net profit from:                       

- continuing operations 2,076 2,211 3,269 2,367 2,378 1,673 1,637 1,534 1,380 1,296 1,590

- discontinued operations           2,154 2,154        

total net profit 2,076 2,211 3,269 2,367 2,378 3,827 3,791 1,534 1,380 1,296 1,590

                       

Net profit from continuing operations                      

in % of the sales 32 35 38 39 38 34 34 36 36 36 38

                       

property, plant and equipment                      

- capital expenditure onshore 224 238 129 277 146 121 121 143 138 125 80

- capital expenditure offshore 383 475 447 405 478 446 446 207 316 325 225

- decommissioning and restoration 57 -163 93 137 273 149          

total capital expenditure  664 550 669 819 896 716 567 350 454 450 305

                       

depreciation and amortization 499 462 501 494 403 374 376 337 344 334 342

                       

shareholders’ equity 174 158 160 162 290 237 437 348 329 280 129

                       

gearing ratio (%) 91 93 91 93 86            

                       

Outside capital  5,146   4,520   5,386   4,664   3,902  3,437 2,977 2,730 2,592 2,746 2,728
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